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- THIS { AUS]:, came bcﬁ:rre the u:om'r for trial. The court aving heard LestImG%%ud r@a@wcdr =

- evidence, having reviewed applicable casc law, and being otherwise duly advised 1ﬁ{@ rpremlseq -2
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. makes the fnllowmg f' ndmgs of lact and conclusions ol faw: - o o '_‘_"E:’ P

OnJ une 3, 1999 the plamtiffs, Dorothy Potts ad Ralph P-::tts Sr, ﬁle@ﬁfnur fﬂunt
comp],unt against the Dcfe:1da.ut AFCO Fmancc Corparaum, aiIegmrr CuunlI Lonvemmn Count
o 2 vm!atmn of Ihe Mﬂtor Vehicle Rctzul Salcs Fma.nce-ﬂff‘ ﬁ' tmt-f% -*Fi’dud a.nd Co‘unt 4 -

-~

Deccptwe / Unfau Trade Practices.

ch:ount Auto Worfd to AJ CO vduc:h ultimately become the hnlder of the contract. To purchase

th:s v f:hlcjle the planiffs ﬁbteunad a loan in the amount of $1L’J 500 with a fmance charge of $6,360).
Ot March 4, 1999, AVCO repcrsscssed the vehicle because of dcfau!t for failure to meet contractnal
obligations. - - |
_ The l‘l'ldtf.'ﬁl camme before the’ cr::un for trial on Ma}r 215 ZﬁGS Thf: ¢ourt recewed testimony
afthe pﬂrtxes and the witnesses. Some facts are disputed and mdeed testimony or other evidence is
canﬂlchng The court has had the oppartumt}r to evaluatc and wetgh all of the testimony presented |
and has based on the its consideration on the intelligence; frankness, credibility, plauﬂblllt}-’,
character and competence of the witnesses. Moreover, il bas been cognizant of the interest of the
parties in the outcome of the case. The court has additionally had the opportunity to consider the

reasonableness in light of all of the cvi:icnce. The Court has also carefuilly reviewed the record,

“arguments presented, and applicable case law.-



P o, BRENOL SR )
Based on the premisé'ihqt their vehicie was wrongfully repﬂs;é:éécd the plaintiffs allege a
cause of dction for Cr:-nw:rsmn and Fraud in Counts 1 and 3 of their Gm‘]lpfdlllt However, they futled
1o prove that the repossession.was unpmpcr The imrefuted testunony 15 that 1:11e Mr. and Mrs. Potls
tailed to make all of their payments' and in fact made numerous payments untimely. In fact, Mrs.
Potts testified that she 1‘1115’:31-;-:.:[11}' mailed one of the payments in nllspule fo f&PPCD instead of
mailing the payment io APCO.* Based upon the testimony and ev 1dence presented the cowt finds.
that the repossession was proper and the plaiitiffs claims for Convr_a_rslpn and Fraud arc meritless.
In Cuuﬁl 2, for violation of the Motor Vehicle Retail Saﬂes Finance Act, aﬁd Count 4, for
Deneptive/Unfair Trade Practices, the plaintiffs allege that the defendant’s Iiability 15 based upon the - -
FTC holder Rule. The FTC Holder Rulc eftectively banned the uiilization of . the
holder-in-due-conrse dociring in consumer credit cases. 16 C.F.R. 433. Th; I.JU,I‘IJOS'E of the ruie is _
to remove the lender’s insulation prm-‘idcd by the hulder—in—duéucgﬁrsé 'ddctrine, and to allow
consumiers to recover ifrom the lender for the acts of the seller. The rule is designed to compel .

 creditors to cither ahsorb sellcr nuscunduct costs or scck l‘GlI‘l‘thI"iEI]'IﬁHt of t}msc costs fmm SE]IE-IS

Schauer'v. Gerieral Motors Acreprance G{}rp 819 So.2d 809 (Fla. 4th DCA EﬂDE) In Tmie; v

DeMariz Porsche Audi Fac:, 459 So.2d 487 {Fla 3d DCA 1984), ﬂm p]amhfl" bmughl an action

. against a caf déalér diid creditir alleging frud and nusrepmsentauan in connection with his purchase - "

: c:f 4 used car’ The j jU-l'}-’ AW dl’df:d damacres 10 the plamuff and agamst rhe cardealer I:rut fmmd ths

car finance agreement. The appeIldte court fﬂund that the I‘rau{] perpehated hy thr:. seller was a

complete defense to the creditor’s counterclaim, and also added the cc:_ﬂsumer could have sought
restitution against the creditor for payments already made. Tinker, 31'492. Therefore, in this case,
ATCO is liable not only [or its condvet, but for the acls of the seller, ; . _

The Flonida Deceptive and Unfeur Trade Practices Act (FDUTPA} is mtcndcd to protect the
consuming public and make ccrnsumer protection consistent with established policies of federal luw,
fla. Sear. § 501.202. The statute, frequently referred to as the ljtﬂc FTC (Federal’ Trade
Corunission) Act, is to be likerafly construed in favor of promoting lts consumer protection policics..

See Cummings v, Warren Hemry Motors, Inc., 648 S0.2d 1230 (Fia. 4th DCA 1995). The FTC has |

‘The court is aware of the oncrous nature of the obligation. Nothing i the opinion should be understood as
the coart’s apprmdl of the coniract, and the contractual ohligation.

’.‘Dupu:.: Liwsm mmmonv of Daordthy Potts, Pdgr., 38, tines Iﬁ 25 Pagf.': 39, llnes l 12
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promulgated specific regulﬁficms FOverming n‘ansacti{ms such as thi:.:':".u!ne before the court. For
cxample there are rules governing uscd car fransactions (Iﬁ (. F.R. 455}, the Holder Rule {16 CFR
433.2), deceptwe pricing (i 6 CF R 233) and ad‘.«emslﬂg of warranties and guarantees { 16 C.F. R
239) ' '

““Plaintiffs argued that as a part of the mducmncnt fur them to purchase the vehicle, f}lﬁ}-' were

* provided a thlrty -day warranty for a cost ef $1ID{} in faﬁt the truck was sold ' ‘2 ig,” therehy

. dlﬁ;laum_ng all warranties. The plaintiffs also contend that the seller futled to complete the odometer

disclosure forms as rcq'uirf:d by law. [Tad these forms been fitled out properly, prior {o 1he
transaction beiﬁg completed, the plaintiffs could have obtained the vehicle’s true mileage history.
Furthermore, the plaintiffs claim that the sales price of the vehicle was inflated by approximately

$2,000 based upon the N.A.D.A Official Used Car Guide afid their expert David Stivers. FDUTTA

is desipned to protect consumers for those who conmit de'ceﬁtive trade practices. A viclation of

EDUTPA may be based on "unfhir, deceptive, or unconscionable acts or ijrac'ticeg_" Sehauer, al 812,

. 'Uﬁ&éf'tﬁé'f‘éderﬁl"éﬁmte an unfair practice is “one that ‘:i'f’r;eﬁ'ds 'és'lab].is'héd Iiltblié”]:mficy’ [and one

ﬁlat 1-1] mlmnral meth]{:dI Dppresswe unsmupulaus or SubGtalltially 111_] urious tu umsumars

IR matenal nnsrepresenhtmns and a fmlure to disclosé reIev.iu_l. ﬂnd lTIdT.El'!'ll fﬂcts aro also cIasqlﬁed'
as unfair and deceptive acts. D@parrmenr afLegaI Aﬁ'mrs v—-Fa:Faer rmd Srm. Mowng & Sramgc* nc.,

.. - 643 8024 22 (Fla. 4t DCA 1994).. A material s

to affect a consumer’s chmce of or conduct rcgardmg g pmduct Thus 1f r:rnnlted mf‘nrmatmn 15

materml mjury is ]11{&1},F LT

At trial, the plaintiffs argued that the conduet i’egardiﬂg the thirty-day warranty versus the “as

' is” form is deceptive, The defendant defended by claunmg lhat the plaintiffs did not call anyone

frorn the dealerslnp to tcsufy on tl‘&s issue and that they f&Iled to pmwde any damages However,
based on the testimouy and the evidence presented, the {:ﬂurt ﬁnds that the scller’'s actions were
deceplive and unfair to the plaintiffs. The vehicle was sold to the plaintiffs with a warranty while
al the same time the plaintiffs were Jirected to sign a d1sclaimm disclamung all warranties. This

Acllon was deceptwe and in violation of the federal FTC Used Car Rule, 16 C.F.R. 455.1, 4; thus,

It was in leatmn of FDUTTA.

Plaintiffs further a:rgued that the seller’s failurc to compleu: ihe udﬂmeter disclosure forms

was deceptive and unfair. Had these forms been complcted, the consumer could have obtained

'information regarding the truck’s history through the Departiment of Motor Vehicles or CarFax
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before purchasing the vehicle. Further, the plaintiffs would have Iearned that an ﬂdﬂ'meter.xu‘ﬂll back
. was indicated, This misrepresented and omitted information was & crugial {:q}nﬁidr:ratiﬁn that led the
p.rla{n.tif I3 to purchase this particular vehacle. The defendant argucéﬂ _tﬂat the plaintiifs would have
-bought the tmck even if they had this information, This coun_doc.g..nnt a;grec. The plaintiffs’ expert,
David Stivers, testi fied fhat the vehicle was ::nver.sr:rld.b}f $2,000 bécanse of this misrepresentation.
]:Hdzmcs of an odometer roll bﬂﬂk, the hlgh number of miles on thc vchicle, and the N.A.D.A. book
value, indicate a falscly inflated price. Had the plamttff's hdd this pertinent information, they could
I:m- e made a more imelligent decision dbout purchamng the fruck. Thus, the seller acted unfairly and
decepuively by not disclosing the propar m_ii_u.::agc and the proper value at the time of l,hL signing of
the contract. _ | | _ -

The pl&iﬁliﬂ_'s also- contend that _thé: subject Retail Installment Sales Contract contamed
misalimed aﬁd illegible terms. The plaintiffs” expert tostificd that the misaligninent of the ’gcrins; on..

" the retail installment confract rendered thie terms of the contract i_l_lé.gi_i;-lr:;._;_..}:"in"anﬁé ferms witieh are -

- illegible violate the Florida Motor Vehicle, Retail Sales b‘iﬁﬁé:ﬁ%t—{ﬂwmm)"'Ha'--.S“za; e

420, f}? Lfegible entries or misalignmenis vmlate ex15lng ]aw because l.here 1S NG meamngful

B _ disclosure of finance terms. In Smith v. No. 32 Galeshurg ﬁmm Fme?Crﬁjﬁ;_ﬁli F.2d 407 (7th- ~- -

{ir. 1980) ov exrulf:d oh differﬂnt grmmds h}* Pridgon v. Gutes (" redw Unmn 6‘33 F.2d 182 (7th Cir.
1982} the court found a cogmzable violation where the amounts’ s_f;ted on thc finance agreement
Wore mwahg:led and illegibie. Furthermore, federal regulations make it clear that the seller must
~ Under Flonida law, the burden of proving disclosure cumplmncf: is on the party clalmmg -

compliance. Fla. Star, 520,07, Meie; the defondant mer cly argued that the p]mnuﬁ‘s knew what they
were gelling, thus there 1s no violation. The court disagrees with ﬂﬁf argument. Without sn‘_iét
compliance ‘with the technical requirements disclosure, consumers cannot make a meamngiul
comparison of available credit altc:.rnativcs. Sharif v. Throp Credit Inc. of Maryland, 23 BR. 519
(N.D. Ga. 1982). Here, the plaintiffs were unahle to clearly read the contract due to the
misalignment of the tenns (o the contract. The defendant did not argue that the misalignment was

a mere printing error o thal there were any measures in place to ensure that this type of activity does

nat take place in the future. I Therefure, since the terms of the 'hgrcemcnt wore miaali@eﬂ and.
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- 11Teg1ble the defendant is in vmlatmn of the FMVRSFA cmd the plaintiffs, pursuant to Florida

Slatute § 520.12, are cntitled to recover any finance charges and fees charged 1n them.

Accordingly, it is herchy

ORDERED AND AD.TUDGED that Iudgment entered on {Jcmber 1, 2004 is herehy
Amended and Judgment shall be entered in favor of Domthy Potts and Ralph Polts Sr., 1242

Northwest 16" Court, Fort L’mdenia]e B 33311 and agmnst defendant AFCQ Finance Comporation,

3650 North Federal nghwa}f, Sulte 214, Lighthonse Poml FL 33#]64 for a total amount of $8,460

f$2,000 {111ﬂatu_,i sale price) + $1_D1] (wairanty cost)] on the FIDUTPA claim and $6,360 under the

{FMVRSFA] together with intercst at the statutory Tate of seven {7%) percent, for which et

execution issne.

The eourt reserves jurisdiction to make an award of attorney’s fees and costs. f’
lay of .

ONE A}JD DRDERED in Chambers, Fc:rt Lauderda]u }'louda lh1s _,.:_,»

-, 2004.
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